IN THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL, : No. 2274 Disciplinary Docket No. 3

Petitioner : No.79DB 2016
V. . Attorney Registration No. 203367
JOSHUA LAWRENCE GAYL, . (Montgomery County)
Respondent
ORDER

PER CURIAM

AND NOW, this 7t" day of November, 2018, upon consideration of the Verified
Statement of Resignation, Joshua Lawrence Gayl is disbarred on consent from the Bar
of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, retroactive to June 3, 2016. See Pa.R.D.E.
215. Respondent shall comply with the provisions of Pa.R.D.E. 217 and pay costs to
the Disciplinary Board pursuant to Pa.R.D.E. 208(g).

A True Co&y Patricia Nicola
As Of 11/07/2018

el n !
Attest; ‘.
Chief Cler! ]
Supreme Court of Pennsylvania



BEFORE THE DISCIPLINARY BOARD OF
THE SUPREME COURT OF PENNSYLVANIA

OFFICE OF DISCIPLINARY COUNSEL : No. 2274 Disciplinary Docket
: No.3

: No. 79 DB 2016

v. : (United States District Court

: for the District of New Jersey
: CR-16-00154)

JOSHUA LAWRENCE GAYL :
' : Attorney Registration No. 203367

: (Montgomery County)

RESIGNATION
UNDER Pa.R.D.E. 215

J c;shua Lawrence Gayl, hereby tenders his unconditional resignation from the practice of law
in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania in conformity with Pa.R.D.E. 215 ("Enforcement Rules") and
further states aé follows:

1. He is an attorney admitted in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, having been
admitted to the bar on or about December 13, 2006. His attorney registration number is 203367.

2. He desires to submit his resignation as a member of said bar.

3. His resignation is freely and voluntarily rendered; he is not being subjected to
coercion or duress and he is fully aware of the implications of submitting this resignation.

4. He acknowledges that he is fully aware of his right to consult and employ counsel to
represent him in the instant proceeding. He has retained, consulted with and acted upon the advice
of counsel, Ellen C. Brotm-an, Esquire, in connection with his decision to execute the within

resignation.

FILED

10/22/2018

The Disciplinary Board of the
Supreme Court of Pennsylvania




S. He is aware that there are presently pending disciplinary proceedings instituted
against him pursuant to Rule 214, Pa.R.D.E. relating to his criminal conviction in the matter
captioned United States of America v. Joshua Gayl, Case No. CR-16-00154, United States District
Court for the District of New Jersey.

6. He acknowledges that the material facts which form the basis for his criminal matter
are true and that he has entered a plea of guilty to one count of conspiracy to obstruct justice in
violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1503. A true and correct copy of the Criminal Information is attached
hereto, made a part hereof and marked Exhibit "A".

7. He acknowledges that the crime to which he has pled guilty is punishable by
imprisonment.

8. He acknowledges that the conviction constitutes a per .;'e ground for discipline under
Rule 203(b)(1), Pa.R.D.E.

9. He acknowledges that under Rule 214(f)(1), Pa.R.D.E., he would be entitled to the
institution of a formal proceeding before a hearing committee 'in which the sole issue to be
determined would be the extent of disc;.iplinc to be imposed.

10.  He submits the within resignation because he knows that he could not successfully
defend himself against the charges of professional misconduct that are being brought in connection
with his conviction.

11.  Heisfully aware that the submission of this Resignation Statement is irrevocable and
that he can only apply for reinstatement to the practice of law pursuant to the provisions of

Enforcement Rule 218(b) and (c).

12.  Heis aware that pursuant to Enforcement Rule 215(c) the fact that he has tendered his



resignation shall become a matter of public record immediately upon delivery of the Resignation
Statement to Disciplinary Counsel or the Secretary of the Board.

13.  Uponentryof the order disbarring him on consent, he will promptly comply with the
notice, withdrawal, resignation, trust account, and cease-and-desist provisions of Enforcement Rule
217 (=), (b), (c) and (d).

14,  Afterentryof the order disbarring him on consent, he will file a verified statement of
compliance as required by Enforcement Rule 217(e)(1).

15.  He is aware that the waiting period for eligibility to apply for reinstatement to the
practice of law under Enforcement Rule 218(b) shall not begin until he files the verified statement of
compliance required by Enforcement Rule 217(e)(1), and if the order of disbarment contains a
provision that makes the disbarment retroactive (o an earlier date, then the waiting period will be
deemed to have begun on that earlier date.

16.  Herequests that his disbarment be made retroactive to June 3, 2016, the date that the
temporary suspension Order was entered. He is advised that the- Office of Disciplinary Counsel doc§
not oppose his request. He understands that the decision to grant his request lies solely within the
' discretion of the Supreme Court of Pcnnsylvania.

It is understood that the statements made herein are subject to the penalties of 18 Pa.C.S.,
Section 4904 (relating to unsworn falsification to autharities).

Signed this ) ay of Ocfober , 2018.
wmmss% eé&“"'—‘ .
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2083R01177
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
DISTRICT OF NEW JERSEY
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA . . Critninal No, 16- A5 ‘/ M
v. : 18 U.8.C. § 371
JOSHUA GAYL :

The defendant having waived in open court prosecution by indicfruent, the U;iitcd'
States Attorney for the District of New Jersey charges:
1, At all times relevant o this Information:
a. VO Financial, Inc, (“VO Financial™) purported 1o offer timeshare consuttiqg
services énd had its_hwdquar;ers"‘in Egg Harbor Township, Adantic Ceunty,
New Jm‘c&; ‘
b, VO Financial waﬁ the successor to the Vacation Ownership Group, Ine., s
VO-Group (the *VO Group™); |
c. VO Financial and VO Group were owmed, managed, and controfled by Adain
Lacerda and Ashley Lacerda; and |
d. Defendant JOSHU A»GAYL was.an attorney who worked for VO ?inancial Bt
its headquarters in Egg Harbor Township.
2, On or about April 12, 2.012, the United States filed criminal complaiﬁts charging
VO Group President Adam Lacerda, his wife VO Group Chief Operations Officer Ashley

Lacerda, VO Group Vice Président of Sales lan Resnick, and several others with tonspiracy to

1
O I R
— Exhibit A -
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commit mail fraud. The charges were based on actions the defendants took at the VO Group to
defraud customers of the VO Grouia;

3. Adam Lacerda, Ashley Lacerda, Yan Resnick, and other defendants were arrested
in or about April 20‘i 2. As part of their conditions of release, the court ordered Adam Lacerda,
Ashley Lacerda, and Ien R'eshi‘ck, in substance and in part, to aveid all contact, directly or
indirectly, with any person who ié or may be a vietim or witness in the invésti'gafion or
prosecution. | |

4. Afer the criminal complaints were filed, Adam Lacerda changed the neme of the
businesa from the VO Group-to VO Financial and continued operating VO Financial a3 the
suecessor to the VO Group. Individuals who had worked at the VO Gm;». mcludmg Adam
Lacerda, Ashley Lacerda, and Ian Resnick, contmued their work &t VO Fmancml

5. Onor about May 3, 2012, the grand.jury in and for the st'mc’f of New Jersey,
sitting at Trenton, returned en indx;ctment charging Adan_:»:Lg;:erda, Ashley Lacerda, and five
other VO Group employees with conspiracy to corrﬁrri't mail fraud and wire fraud, as wéll as

mdw:dual acts of mail fraud arid wire fraud and other qffenscs United States v, Adam Lacerds

et al,, Crim. No. 12-303 (NLH). In substance and in part, the mdmtment charged that the VO
Group employees made mlsrepresentauons tD owners ofnmesha:es and persuaded those victims
to send money to the VO Group. The indictment charged that the object of the ¢onspiracy x;vas
that defendants falsely rcprcsmtcd'to VO Group customers that “the VO Group could pay off
timeshare owners® ‘mortgages’ on their timeshares, have timesharc;,'s cancelled, or have the
owners’ timeshares sold.” lan Resnick was not named as a defendant in the indictment but

remgined charged in the criminal complaint.
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6. Defendant JOSHUA GAYL started working at VO Finencial as General Counsel
and Corporate Secretary on or abm;t July 1, 2012,

7. In his work at VO Financial, defendant JOSHUA GAYL regularly used VO
Financial's Pipeline system. The Pipeline system was a database containing notes prepared by
VO Financial employses summarizing contacté with YO Financial customers, copies of
recordings of calls with customers, coptes of documents, a;;d‘ tagks from-one VO Finanejal
employee 6 another, _

8. Defendant JOSHUA GAYL read the indictment in United Btates'v. Adam
Lacerda et al., Crim. No. 12-303 (NLH), befqre he started working at \./O Financial and also. read
the criminal complaint naming Adam Lucerda, Asﬁlcy Lacerda, lan Resnick, and others as
defendants. |

9, As-part of his duties as Gcm‘,@] Counsel of VO Fiaaﬁc‘ia]‘, dcfeﬁ&am JOSHUA
GAYL ronitored developments in the criminal case. "

10.  OnJanuary 23; 2013, the grand jury in and for the District of New Jersey, sitting’
at Camden, returned a superseding indictment ageinst Adam Lacerda, Ashley Lacerda, lan
Resnick, and seven other VO Group employees. Except fér the addition of thréc defendants aad -
some clarification of the charges, the superseding indiétmient was substaniislly-identical ta the
indictment, | '

11, On or about March 7, 2013, the court scheduled triaf in the orimainal case to start
on ey about July 8, 20.13. ' _ .

12, Adam Lecerda and Ashley Lacerda continued to work at VO Financial while they

were under indictment and awaiting trial. Defendant JOSHUA GAYL coritimued to work at VO
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Financial with Adam Lacerda and Ashley Léc;rda.- GAYL was awere of the criminal charges
and the impending trial in United Siatss v. Adam [acerdaetal,

13,  Between in or about January 2013 and m or aboﬁt June 2013, 13 individuals. who
had worked at the VO Group pled guilty to conspiﬁng to commit meil fraud and wire fraud with

Adam Lacerda, Ashley Lacerda, and othér defendants, and some of the 13 individuals pled guilty

. to additional charges. These guflty pleas were publicized, and Gayl was aware of therh on or

about when they occurred,

14,  The trial'in United States v. Adam Lacerda et al. commenced on or about July 11, |
2013, with the start of jury selection. Adarm Lacerds, Ashiey Lacérda; lan Resnick, and two
other individuals were the defendants af trial. , _ ‘

15, On or shout July 19, 2013 at the Beg Haibor Towhship offices of VO Financiel,
agents of the Federal Bureau of Investigation banded defendant JOSHUA GAYL a trial
subpoens addressed to VO Finangial. The tria}_ suSpfccna direct;ed VO Financial to produce il
documents relating to 36 potentiai {rial witnesses listed in Lha trial w&wena inclading any
recordings of telephone calls with fhose 36 potential tnal wunesses. '.

16.  On orabout July 23, 2013 dcfendant JOSHUA GAYL prowded a CD of
doeuments as VO Financial’s response to the trial subpoéna. Thg CD ineluded documents
GAYL had obtained from the Pipeline system. The CD also mcluded a certification prepared
and signed by GAYL. The CD was meuk;:d for identification at the trial as Govémment Exhibit
2001, and several documents [rorm the CD wers introduced into svidence at the criminal trial.

17. The jury heard ev1dencc in the criminal trial {n-July and August 2013 and found
Adam Lacerda, Ashley Lacerda, lan Resnick, and anothcr defendant guilty of conspizacy to

commit mail and wire fraud and additional charges.
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The Conspiracy
18, From in or about September 2012 through in or about August 2013 at Egg Harbor

Township, in Atlantic County, in the District of New Jerssy, and elsewhere, defendant

JGSHUA GAYL |
did knowingly and intentionally conspire and agree withi Adam Lacerda and others to commit an
offense against the United States, that is, to corruptly endeavor to influence, obstruct, and impede
the due administration of justice, contrary to Title 18, Unitéd States Code, S¢otion 1503,

The Gbiect of the Conspiracy

19. It was the object of the conspiracy that defendant JOSHUA GAYL, Adam

Lacerda, and others misled witnesses, tried to improperly influetie witnesses, contacted

. witnesses in violation of court-ordered bail conditions, made false staternents to the court, and

presented altered documents to the court in response to 2 trial su'bpoené, all fn an endeavor o

obstruct the due administration of justice in United States'v. Adam Lagerda etal.
Manner and Means of the Conspiracy |
20. It was part of the conspiracy thet defendant JOSHUA GAYL and ethers trigd to
mistead Vietim #1, a witriess in the criminal case, énd'ak’e: ch{qm #1 '8 testimony: 7
i Vict'im #1 .was‘ toldby YO Grot—g: employes Brig “Skip” 'Rei'ﬁ"‘in or aliout
Sebiembcr_ 2010 that the VO Grcup- Wét'llfld 'écll Vié{im#l“s*ﬁme-s'hé}e end
settle Victim #1°s timeshare debt if Yietim #1 paid money to the VO Group.
Victim #1 paid the money, Eut‘ the VO Group did not sel} the timesh'a:te or-
* seitle the debt. - '
b. Eric “Bkip” Reiff was charged with Adam Lacerda, Ashley Lacerda, and

others in the criminal complaint filed on or sbout Aptil 12, 2012.
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c. Inorabout Aprii;.ZOIZ, shortly afier she wa§ arrested, Ashley Lacerda directed
S.A., an employee of VO Financisl, o call Victim #1, and §.A, caffed and
wrote repeatedly ta Victim.#] over the next moriths, When S.A. spoke to
Victim#} in or about September 2012, Victirg #1 said that l};e VOjGroup toid'
Victim #] that the VO Groué would seli Vic‘dm.#l"s timeshare and that
Vietim #1 had spoken to the PB].” On or about September ZOii, S.A. wrole s
note in the VO Financial Pipeline systen; summarizing what Victim #1 hed
said,

d. In or about Septembet and October 2012, defendant JO.SiHUA G:AYL wrole
and called Victim #1 to lock Vietim #1 into a story ﬁrid 16 eliéi_t any
statements thst would be helpful to the defense n the criminal case, but
GAYL did not tell Q-‘.cﬁrﬁ 41 that thst weS the reason for writing and calling
Victim #1. GAYL knew that Victim #1 was a witness in the criminal case
before writing and calling Victim #1. |

e. On ot abowst S,'eptemﬁer 28, 201 2, dzfendant JOSHUA GAYL wrote and senta
fetter to Victim #1. The letter mcitgdsom’ei statenietiis that GAYL said Victim
#1 had made to S.A., including a false staiex;ﬁentfny GAYL that ‘V'ic,t;irn #1 was
told by the FBI to make payments to a timeshare developer, which the defense-
belleved would be favorable to the defense. GAYL's letter then stated: “We
will be able to assist you better moving forward if you.are able to confirm this
information in writing.” This statement was false and. rmsleading because
GAYL's purpose was to obtain Victim #1°s apreement with statements '

' favorable to the defense, including agreement with the false statement in
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GAYL's letter, and because the confirmation had nothing to do with helping
Victim #1.

f.  Onor about October 15, 2012, Victim #1 faxed a statement to VO Financial,
In the statement, Victim #1 refnsed' to agree with the false statemeﬁt that the
FBI told Victim #} to meke payments to a timsshare developer.

g. Onor sbout October 31, 2012, deferidant JOSHUA GAYL and S.A. mads two -
telephom calis te Victim#1, During the two October 31,2012 calls, S.A. and
GAYL gave the false impression that the purpose of the calls was, to assist
Victim #1, which was false and misleading because Ihe purpose of the calls
was to obtain. stmements favorablc tothedefonse. -

h Al the bcgmn%ng of the first call, S.A. fold Vlctrm #1, in the presence of
defendant JOSHUA GAYL, that the ¢afl was bcmg recorded for quﬂltty
training and assurance purposes, This statement was fatse and misfeading, as
the purpose of recording the call was to obtain faverable staterﬁe'nts foruse at

i. During the first October 31, 2012 call, dcfendam JOSHUA GAYL gave -
_Vzcum #1 a false and misleading sumndary of the m:swpresentauohé&ﬂeged
in the criminal case and asked if amry of those misrepresentations were made to
Victim #1, and Victim #1 said that they were not. GAYL's summary of the
criminal case's misrepresentations was false é.nd misleading becausé GAYL
omincﬁ thet the criminal ease alleged that the defendants misfepresented to
victims that the VO Group would sell thefr timeshare — the' very

misrepresentation that Victim #1 said was made to Vlcum #1 by the VO
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m.

Group. The ndtural effect of GAYL’s false and misleading summary would
be to give Victim #1 the false iinpression thdt the misrebrcscntau'on made to
Victim #1 was not part of the criminal case.

In the ﬁr_sl-OctoBer 31,2012 call, defendant JOSHUA GAYL tried to change
Victim #1’s recollection about being told that the VO Group would sell
Victim #1's timeshare, GAYL asked if Victi.m #1 undérstood that “we do not
sell timeshares™ and suggested that Victim #1 waé suffering from “confusion™
in recalling that the VO .Gmup said that it would sell Vi.xtlzti'm #1’s timeshare,
Near the end of the first October 31, 2012 call, Victim #1 asked if Victim #1
would have to testify against enybody, and .éefe-ndant JOSHUA GAYL replicd
that he did net know if the prosecution would require that,

Defendant JOSHUA .GAY‘L spoke to Adam ”Lacerda immediately after ending
the first October 31, 2012 call. At Ad‘am Lacerda’s request, GAYL calied
Victim #1 back a fcv? minutes later to elicit fiirther statements helpful tq the
defense in the criminal case, including to elicita statemént that Victim #] was

mistaken in recailing that the VO Group promised to sell Victim #1's

timeshare. GAYL failed to tell Victim #1 that that was the purpose of the call,

'During the second Octaber 31; 2012 call, defendant JOSHUA GAYL

" explained.the VO Group Debt Reduction Deed Replacement program and

suggwted‘that & misunderstanding of this program was & possible reason for
Victim #1's understanding of what “Skip™ had told her. This explanation and
suggestion was fatse and misléading betause that program did not exist when

Eric “Skip” Reiff persuaded, Victim #1 to send money to the VO Group and
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21

because GAYL had no idea what Eric “Skip” Reiff told Victim #1. GAYL
told Victim #{ that under the Debt Reduction Deed Replacement program, the
original timeshase developer would sell the fimeshare, GAYL asked Victin
#1 if the Debt Reduction Deed Replacement Program he described was
familiar, and Victim #1 said that it was possible that Vi.bﬁm #1 had
misuriderstood. GAYL then told Victim #1 that it was “likely” and “Jogical”

that Victim #1 had misunderstood,

. "Tho defense listed Victim #1 s a.trial witness, but Vietim #1 was nover called

to testify.

. Erie “Skip” Reiff pled guilty to gonspiracy 1o commit mail fraud and wire

fraud on May 1, 2013.

It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant JOSHUA GAYL, Ashley

Lacerda, Adam Lacerda, lan Resnick, and others paid money to witnesses in the criminal cese in

exchange for a release, in order to improve the defense’s position at {iial and to make the

witnesses less likely to testify at trial and, if they did testify, to be more favorably.inclined:to the

defense.

22,

it was further part of the conspiracy that defendant JOSHUA GAYL, lan Resnick,

end Ashley Lacerds worked togethier to persaaée Vict‘im,‘-#Z to accept paymg’niin exchange fora

release:

a. In or about September 2010, Ian Resnick persuadéd Victim #2 to pay the VO

G'rouﬁ $4,000 to cancel Victim #2°s timeshare. Victim #2 paid the money but

the tireshare was not cancelled.
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b. From in or about August 2012 through in or about Deéember 2012, lan
Resnick called Victim #2 repeaied ly and recorded nmimerous calls in an effort
1o obtain statéments helpful to the defense at tral.

¢ lan Resnick offered to haye-Viciim #2's $4.’Q§6 raﬁx__x}dﬁd in exchange fora
relegse, anick believed that if VictimA #2 aceepted a refund, Victim #2.
would be unable to testify at trial, |

d. ARer Victim #2 initially refused to sign a release and power of attormey on
advice of Victim #2's vounsel, Ashley Lacerda directed defendant JOSHUA
GAYL to write to Victim #2. GAYL knew thatl\l'igﬁm #2 was a potential trial
witness against lan Resnick and that Resnick wéinted Vielim #2 to take'a
refund. |

¢. .On o sbout December 5, 2012, defendan JOSHUA GAYL wrote and sent a
letter to Vi;:tim #2, GAYL's letter urged Victim #2 to a—c@t the fefurrd, a
staii:ng, ‘in pért: *J simply cammt.compreﬁend'any. basis fqrvreﬁ;sing. to ancept
a refund in this circumétaqce. . o~ [1]t makes no seh§e,t§ me why you sheuld
*sit and wait.” What afe you waiting for??? HaQe you changed your mind and
no longer want a refund?” »

f. Defendant JOSHUA GAYL's letter was false and misleading because it failed
to inform Viclim #2 of the true reasons tha the refund was being offered.

g. On or abeut March 29, 201 3., Jan Resnick wrote a’n@t& Inthe VO Einaaéia’i |
Pipeline system stating that Victim #2 lefta vﬁicemail_ asking about the reftind
and stating that Resnick wasnot-comfortable returning the call because

Victim #2 mentioned talking to the FBI. ‘Ashley Lacerda advised that
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defendant JOSHUA ‘GAYL therefore should return the call. GAYL retumned
the call, reassured Victim #2 that the refund would be paid, and'wmte anote |
in the Pipeline system immediately following Resnick’s note.
he Victim #2 signed a release and received s refund. Vi‘c;ﬁm #2 testified af trial
and stated, among other thihgs, that Victim #2 was ‘.‘perturEi'eﬁ"' by defondant -
JOSHUA.GAYL's Decsmber 5, 2012 fetter. |
23. It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant JGSH UA GAYL sent aletter
offering payment to Victim #3, a witness, if Yi'cf-;m #i signed. a refease:
2. Inerabout April 2010, Adam Lacerda. using the‘falsg name Rabert Klein,

told Victim #3 that the VO Group would Hist Victim #3's timeshare for sale

for a fee of $1,098 and would return the fee if the timeshare was not sold
within 30 days. Victim #3 paid the fee but the timeshare was not sold.

b. When Victim #3 asked for a refund, Adam La,cerdé; posing as Rob'ert Klein,
told Victim #3 that he had iaravﬁ'eusly conveyed ez offer and thal Vicﬁm #3
had net res.ponded,: As proof, Laccrda,/l()éiﬁ sent Victim #3 an email
purporting to contain & copy of Ie,m email to Victim #3 conveying the offer, But
Victim #3 never received the email cor.xveying‘ﬂxcv offer and believed (he email
was fabricated: Vietim #3's last communiication ffm}x‘q;he VO Group w&s in

July 2010.
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¢. On or sbout March 28, 2013, documents relating to Victim #3, inchuding -
documents showing that Victim #3 communicated with Rebert Klein (Aﬁam

Lacerda) and that Victim #3 believed that Lacerda/Klein produced a

11
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fabricated email, were p;ovided to the defense in discovery in the criminal
case.

d. Onor about June I, 2013, Ashley-Lacerds dirécted VO Financial employee
Dcnnis.Nadeau tb contact Victim #3 offering a refund. Nadeau called Victim
#3 and then wrote & note in the VO Finanéial Pipeline system'to defendaﬁ{
JOSHUA GAYL.

e, On or about June 7, 2013, defcndént JOSHUA GAYL wrote and sertt a [etter
to Victim #3 withan enclosed releasec At the time he wmte the letter, GAYL |
knew that Vlctm'r #3 was a, w1tness who xmght testify in the trialthat was
scheduled to start the followmg; month. GAYL's lelttc:fstected that Victim #3's
case file was recently recovered exid that *'a refund was in order d;m 1o the fact
thaf ?;Q'Group; LLC was not able to compireté' thev sei-v-iéaé it éffe;ed as']sari_ of
an Agteement you sigtied back in Aptil 2070 GAYL’s letter was faise arid
misleading because the letter failed to-state that a refund was being offered
because Victimn #3 was a potential trial witness.

24, It was further part of the conspiracy that defendant JOSHUA GAYL sent a letter .
offering payment to Vi;:tim #4,8 \;vit'ne‘ss, if Victim #4 signed a release:

-8, Tnor abou! l‘ebmary 2010, Victim #4 paid the \Ze Gmup $700 fo l;st Vmum
#4' shmesharc for sale, anid-the VO Group ajgesi: o mﬁzﬁd the 5709 11—'311
offer was nof reaeived. Victim #4 did not receive an offer or a refund.

b. On June 2, 2013, Ashley Lacerda made the first entry into the Pipeline system

concerning Victim #4, which stated that Victim #4 spoke to the governmert
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on Sepfcmbcr 1,2011. Ashley Lacerds instructed Dennis Nadeau to call
Vietim #4, which he did. © -

¢ Onor about June 7, 2013, defendant JOSHUA GAYL wrote and sent a letter
to Vietim #4 witﬁ an enclosed relgase, At the titne he wrote the letter, GAYL
knew that Victim #4 was a potential trial witness in the trial that was |
scheduled 1o start the fol lowing morith, GAYL's letter stated that Victim #4's
case file was recently recovered and that “a refund was i ordet due to the fagt,
that VO -Group, LLC was notable to compteté the services it offered you a5
part of an Agreement you signed back in February 2010,"™ GAYL sletter was
false and misleading because the letter failed to stats that a refund was being
offered because Victim #4 was a potential irfal witness,

25. It was further part of the conspitacy that on or about July 23, 2013, defendant
JOSHUA GAYL and Adam Lecerda preserited & false response to the July 19, 2013 trfal
subpoena directed to VO Finencial:

a. The subpoena to VO Financial was accepted by defendant JOSTHUA GAYL at
or sbout 5745 pm. on July 19,2013, |

b. On orabout 6:404.m: on Jul y 19, 20 13, Mm:k -Eed're.n;e', E’squrrc, the Tawyer
defending Adam Lacerda in thé éi%minél tria.i,A serit an eramil to eounsel for the
prosesution, with & copy to defendant JOSHUA GAYL, stafing that counel
had advised Adam Lacerde “fo remove himself ﬁ'om any and all aspects of
VO Financial’s response/reaction to the subpoena,”

¢. Later in the evening of July 19, 2015, defendant jO'SHUA GAYL cox;su]ted,

with Adam Lacerda about the response to the trial subpoena. GA"Y'L_ played
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for Adﬁ Lacerda a recording of & call between Dennis Nadesu arid one of the
witnesses fisted in the subpoena and caled to Lacerda’s attention a troubling |
portion of the recording,

~d. Defendart JOSHUA GAYL knew at the time that Adam Lacerda had the
ability to delete rhatc,rials from the Pipeline system,

¢. Before the production of documents in response 10 the subpoena; Adem
Lacerda altered the recording thet defendam JOSHUA GAYL had played for
AdamLaccrda and deleted the portio.n that GAYL had brought to Adam
Lacerda’s aftsftion. The altered recording was produced as pa& of the::
response to the subpoens, without a.ny irsdication that it kad been altered.

f, Anadditiona! recording produced in response to thé subpacua, qf a . "
canversation between lan Resnick and Victim #2, has a loud buzzing sound at
the only time in the recording when Resnick was using the names of Adam
and Ashley Lacerds, and the buzzing sound makes their names l.argn_ly, but not
entirely, inaudible.

g Entries ﬁ‘o%m 8 -P.ipeﬁné system logi pumber asstgngd fo Adam Lacér’ck_l were

' dglctc&.from thﬁ Pipeline systeny et or abeut 10:30 PAM. O thrs evening of July '
19, 2013.

h. On of about July 23, 2013, defendant JOSHUA GAYL prepared, signed, and
submitted a false certification with the respanse to the tisl subpoena,
GAYL's certifibation stated: “Mark C-edfqne‘ Esq., counsst for Deféndam
Adam Lacerda, instructed me not o consult with Defendants regafdin.g the

document production, and as such | have not consulted with any of the
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Defendants rega‘r‘&ing the document production and specifically to what
dacuments would be con;siderc_d rqsponéi’ve 1o the subpoena.,” GAYL's
certification was false because he did consult wi th-Adgm Lacerda‘ﬂ.:gardihg
the document production, | | |
Defendant JOSHUA GAYL's certification also stated: 1 have erideavored to
comply in good f‘éu'tﬁ wﬁh the produetion. ., . 1. .. comp'ilcd ﬁxc responsive
documents and copied them to a CD-R." GAYL's certification was faise anid

misleading because at least one altered recofdiﬁg was prodiuced as part of the -

- production and GA YL failed to. verify that the cemplete recarding he played

Qvert acls

for Adam Laoerda was inchuded in the production.

26, In furtherance of the conspiracy and to effectuate its objects, defendant JOSHUA

GAYL and his co-conspirators committed and caused to be committed the following acts inthe

Distriet of New Jersey and efsewhere:

a.

On or about September 25, 2012, defendant J OSHUA QAYL wrote & ietkcr 10
Victm#1, .

On or about Qctober 31, 2‘012, defendant JOSHUA GAYL and S.A. called
Victim #1. |

On or about dctober 31, 2012, defendant JOSHUA GAYL called Victim #1a
second time. | ’

On or about December 3, 2012, defendant JOSHUA GAYL sent aletter to
Victim #2. |

On or about March 29, 2013, defendant JOSHUA GAYL cafled Victim 42,
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f. Onorabout June.7, 2013, defendant JOSHUA GAYL sent a letter to Victim
#3, ‘

g Onor sbout June 7, 2013, defendant JOSHUA GAYL sent a lotir 10 Vietim

. “ .

h. On or about July 23, 2013, defendant JOSHUA GAYL prepared and
submitted a certification conceming the VO Fimanciaf production of
documents in res‘ponserto a frial subpoena,

i,  On or about July 23, 2013, defendant JOéHU,A G,{_\YL submitted 8 €D with
documents cqpéﬁtﬁting VO Firancial's rcsponsé to thé trial subpoens.

All in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 371,

PAUL J. FISHMAN
United States Attorney
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